8:36: 53 AM

CALL TO ORDER

Co- Chair

HOUSE FI NANCE COWM TTEE
March 11, 2014
8:36 a. m

Stoltze called the House Finance Conmittee neeting

to order at 8:36 a.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representati ve
Representati ve
Representative
Representati ve
Representati ve
Representative
Representati ve
Representati ve
Representative
Representati ve
Representati ve

VEMBERS ABSENT

None

ALSO PRESENT

Al an Aust erman, Co-Chair
Bill Stoltze, Co-Chair
Mar k Neurman, Vice-Chair
Ma Costello

Bryce Edgnon

Les Gara

David Guttenberg
Li ndsey Hol nes
Cat hy Munoz

St eve Thonpson
Tammi e W1 son

Johanna Bal es, Deputy Director, Tax Division, Departnent of

Revenue.

SUMVARY

HB 112 REPEAL FI LM PRODUCTI ON TAX CREDI T
HB 112 was REPORTED out of commttee with "no
recommendation” and wth one new zero inpact
fiscal note from the Departnment of Conmerce,
Communi ty and Econom c Devel opnent and one fisca
i mpact note fromthe Departnent of Revenue.

#hb112

HOUSE BI LL NO. 112

House Fi nance Conmmittee 1 03/11/14 8:36 A M



"An Act repealing the film production tax credit;
providing for an effective date by repealing the
effective dates of secs. 31 - 33, ch. 51, SLA 2012

and providing for an effective date."

8:37:18 AM

Co-Chair Stoltze asked if there were any anmendnents to the
bill.

Representative Costell o discussed the zero fiscal note from
the Depart nent of Conmer ce, Community and Econom c
Devel opnent (DCCED) and the fiscal inpact note from the
Depart ment of Revenue (DOR)

Co-Chair Stoltze noted that there had been approxi mately
$40 million in credits redeened and $60 nmillion in credits
encunbrance; the total was $200 m !l on.

Vice-Chair Neuman MOVED to REPORT HB 112 out of committee
wi th individual recommendations and the acconpanying fiscal
not es.

Co-Chair Stoltze OBIJECTED for discussion.

Representative Gara pointed to the $40 mllion used. He
wondered if there was an annual limt.

JOHANNA BALES, DEPUTY DI RECTOR, TAX DI VI SION, DEPARTMENT OF
REVENUE, responded that the limtation was by anount for a
period of time. The first $100 mllion in the program was
through the end of June 2013, and the additional $200
mllion was for the period running through 2023.

Representative WIson wondered why the tax credits were
allowed to be sold versus the industry wusing them M.
Bal es replied that the producers receiving the tax credits
were typically not tax payers. They were not subject to any
of the eight different tax types, of which the credit could
be taken against. In order for the producer to receive
anything, they would need to transfer the credit to tax
payer .

Representative W/Ison asked how the legislature or public
find out where the tax credits were wused. M. Bales
responded that the departnent tracked where the credits
were used. She stated that when a tax payer purchases a tax

House Fi nance Conmmittee 2 03/11/14 8:36 A M



credit the receive a certificate which nust be attached to
the tax return filing against the tax type that would be
claimed wunder the <credit. She agreed to provide the
information in the aggregate.

Representative Wl son asked if the public saw the detail of
who utilizes the credits. Ms. Bales replied that she could
provide the tax types the credits were taken against, but
not the name of the tax payer.

Co-Chair Stoltze assuned that there was anonymty. M.
Bal es replied that there were confidentiality statutes that
prohi bited DOR fromdistributing that information.

Represent ati ve Thonpson corrected the fiscal note.
Representative Costello restated the fiscal note from DOR
showed that the fiscal inpact for FY 15 was $338,400, no
fiscal inpact in FY 16 and FY 17, and a savings to the
state in FY 18 forward of $304, 800.

8:43:58 AM

Representative Costello wondered about information on the
anount of noney that went to salaries for Al askans. M.
Bal es replied that no tax credits had been issued under the
new program The prior program had been overseen and
adm nistered by DCCED. The departnment was working to
deci pher the amobunt of wages that were paid directly to
Al askans.

Co-Chair Stoltze asked if there were any industry
pronouncenents to hire Al askans. Ms. Bales replied that the
departnment did receive information from sonme of the
producti on conpani es, when they were seeking Al aska talent.
She stated that she did not have any information regarding
what the conpani es had done to pronote hiring Al askans.

Representative Costello remarked that the anobunt of the tax
credit would equal the armount of nobney that was paid to
Al askans, because that was how the legislature drafted the
bill. She stressed that the nunber would be equal to the
sal aries that were going to Al askans.

Representati ve Munoz asked about clarification on
outstanding credits. Ms. Bales replied that $42 million had

House Fi nance Conmmittee 3 03/11/14 8:36 A M



been redeened of $86 mllion rewarded. She stated that $8
billion had been prequalified under the new program and
applications were currently being examned, and could be
prequalified before July 1, 2014.

Co-Chair Stoltze surmised that it was just higher than $100
mllion. Ms. Bal es agreed.

Representative Minoz asked if the $200 mnmllion was
repeal ed, which would have carried forward to 2023.Ms.
Bales replied that the amount would be slightly less $200
mllion in potentially increased revenue if the program was
r epeal ed.

Representative W/Ison asked about residency requirenents.
She understood that one had to be present in Al aska for 30
days. Ms. Bales replied in the affirmative. Below the line
wages would need to neet the Permanent Fund Dividend
resi dency requirenents.

Representative Gara understood that there was a total $300
mllion allocation for the program over ten years, with $42
mllion since the programs inception. Apart from the $200
mllion |eftover through 2023, he understood that there was
a certain amount that was encunbered. He queried a range of
estimates that the state would pay for pending applications
at the top and bottom end. M. Bales replied that the
department had approved $86 mnmillion in credits, meaning
that the conpanies had received a transferable tax credit
certificate. O those, $42 mllion had been used against
taxes. The departnment had preapproved another $8 mllion,
which nmeant that a conpany had stated that they had
estimated expenses for a proposed production. She stated
that there were several current applications that had not
been prequalified for production. She announced that
approxi mately $100 m|lion had been actually approved.

8:50:45 AM

Representative CQuttenberg asked for clarification on the
prequalified nunber. Ms. Bales replied that the nunber was
$8 mllion.

Representative CQuttenberg asked how many productions that
made up. Ms. Bales replied that there were 29 productions.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 4 03/11/14 8:36 A M



Representative Gara began as mldly supportive of the
program He believed the program should be nmintai ned. The
state's econony was not diverse. The Native corporations
had beconme a driving force, so did not have a broad based
econony. The program did not cost the state a |ot of noney.
It equated to approximately $20 nillion per year. The state
had increased the anmount of nobney going to local hire, and
it had a side effect of benefitting the state's tourism
econony. The flaw in all of the state's tax credits was
that conpanies only paid a corporate tax when they were a C
corporation. He discussed the |oophole in the corporate tax
program He believed the committee would have to | ook at
the issue in the future.

8:56: 07 AM

Representative Gara continued discussing taxes in Al aska.
He believed the bill helped nove the econony forward. He
pointed to past testinony that the program had created many
desirable jobs for Alaskans. He reiterated that the state
did not have many ways to diversify the econony. If a
person was not interested in the oil industry or the health
field there were other jobs offered. He restated that the
program cost approximately $20 million per year; a cap had
been put on the anount intentionally. He discussed that
Senator Johnny Ellis had been the prime sponsor of the
program He pointed to locations filns ad been produced in
the past; filnms were now filnmed in Al aska due to the credit
program The program brought jobs to rural Alaska. He did
not believe getting rid of the program was necessary. He
spoke in support of the program

Vi ce-Chair Neuman spoke against the program He pointed to
an audit of the program (copy on file). He read from the
audit. He spoke to the fiscal inpact of the bill. He stated
that $21 mllion of investnment brought in $1 mllion to the
state. He pointed to difficult fiscal times and spoke about
reductions in the operating budget. He wondered where the
state would cone up with the noney. He acknow edged that
some noney went to Al askans. He supported the bill.

9:02: 15 AM

Representative Costello spoke against the program She
treated the program |I|ike capital proj ect. As the
| egi sl ature wei ghed whether it wanted to spend nobney, and
stressed the efforts the state had the responsibility to

House Fi nance Conmmittee 5 03/11/14 8:36 A M



spend noney on. She voted to nove the bill from comrttee.
She believed the full |egislature should have a voice on
t he issue.

Representative Thonpson went back and forth on the issue
He felt like the there was an effect happening as a result
of the program however, he |ooked at the state's budget.
He wondered if repealing the program would reduce the
nunber of enployed persons in Alaska. He had not nmade up
his mnd on the issue.

9:05:16 AM

Representati ve Minoz spoke from the perspective of a snall
busi ness owner. She did not believe it nade sense to pul
back conpletely on the program She pointed to television
prograns and advertising; she believed the program was
providing Alaska with mnmedia benefits. She recalled a John
Sales filmthat had been filnmed in the state years earlier
She wanted to see the program continue. She acknow edged
that it may need to be ranped back. She spoke against the
bill.

Representative Quttenberg spoke in support of the program
He believed repealing the program would be pulling the rug
out from underneath a new industry that did not have the
feet to be self-sustaining at the tine. He stressed that it
was inportant to optimze what the state had. He reiterated
that the industry was gaining nonentum He spoke to the
devel opment of talent. He pointed to an Al askan who had
just received an acadeny award for work done outside of
Al aska. He stressed the inportance of bringing those people
hore.

9:12: 33 AM

Representative Gara referred to a Legislative Budget and
Audit (LB&A) study, and believed the study was done prior
to 2012. Co-Chair Stoltze agreed.

Representative Holnmes noted that the nunbers reflected the
old program There were not updated nunbers. She liked to
see talent developed locally. She was struggling with the
i ssue. She would like to support tourism small businesses
and other industry, but noted that the credits issued may
have a negative inpact on state funds.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 6 03/11/14 8:36 A M



Co-Chair Austerman spoke to his encouragenent of how to
expand the state's economc base. Until the state figured
out what its tax base and tax structure would | ook like, it
would be difficult to measure the success of the program
He stated that $20 million per year provided no conparison
to the oil industry. He believed the state needed to
continue to pursue developing new industries in the state
He pointed to other legislation taking a look at how tax
credits benefited the state. He did not oppose noving the
bill fromcomrmittee but could not support it on the floor.

Representative WIlson would not stop the bill; however, she
was concerned about data collection in the state related to
taxes. She noted it was not the fault of the industry. She
read from the audit. She stated that $20 nmillion per year
was significant. She was concerned about whether the
program was beneficial to the state because of the way it
portrayed the state. She stated that small mners felt they
were regul ated nore because sone of the shows made it | ook
like they were not adequately regulated. She pointed to
another Dbill in conmttee related to tax credits, and
enphasi zed that the conpanies were out of state. She agreed
that Al aska should focus developing our talents, but
rem nded about that when oil taxes were changed the
subcontracting jobs noved out of state. She stated that it
was inportant to pressure the conpanies making the novies
to know where the credits were going.

9:20: 32 AM

Co-Chair Stoltze remarked that the tax credits were
subsidies. He felt that the program would only work with an
income tax, but he would not support an inconme tax. He
stressed that a tax credit would only work within an actual
tax structure. He stressed that any dollar put into the
program was noney that was taken away from savi ngs.

Co-Chair Stoltze WTHDREW hi s OBJECTI ON.

There being NO further OBJECTION HB 112 was REPORTED out of
conmmittee with "no recomendation” and with one new zero
i npact fiscal note from the Departnent of Commerce,
Community and Econonic Devel opnent and one fiscal inpact
note fromthe Departnent of Revenue.

Co-Chair Austerman discussed the agenda for the afternoon
nmeeti ng.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 7 03/11/14 8:36 A M



#
ADJ QURNVENT
9:24: 07 AM

The neeting was adjourned at 9:24 a.m

House Fi nance Conmmittee 8 03/11/14 8:36 A M



